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FILED

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

FORT MYERS DIVISION 201711AR 114 AN11: 19

CLF.N.US MSTR1CT COURT
tioLE DiSlitC1" FLORMA

GANEL POUDY, on behalf of himself
and all others similarly situated,

Plaintiff,
CASE NO.: c91:ifitd qq04(vs.

TEXAS ROADHOUSE OF FORT

MYERS, FL, LLC, a Foreign Profit
Corporation.

Defendant.

COMPLAINT

COMES NOW Plaintiff. GANEL l'OUDY. (hereinafter "Plaintiff on behalf ol

himself, other employees and former employees similarly situated, by and through the

undersigned counsel, and files this Complaint against Defendant. TEXAS ROADHOUSE

OF FORT MYERS, FL, LLC doing business as Texas Roadhouse (hereinafter

"Defendanr or "TEXAS ROADHOUSE") and states as follows:

JURISDICTION

1. Jurisdiction in this Court is proper as the claims are brought pursuant to the

Fair Labor Standards Act, as amended. (29 U.S.C. §201. et seq., hereinafter called the

ELSA-) to recover unpaid minimum and overtime wages. an equal amount of liquidated

damages and reasonable attorney's fees and costs.

2. The jurisdiction of the Court over this controversy is based upon 29 U.S.C.

§216(b).
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PARTIES

3. At all times material hereto, Plaintiff, GANEL POUDY, is and was a resident

of Lee County, Florida.

4. At all times material hereto, TEXAS ROADHOUSE was and continues to be

a Foreign Profit Corporation. Further, at all times material hereto, TEXAS

ROADHOUSE was, and continues to be, engaged in business in Florida, with a principle

place ofbusiness in Lee County, Florida.

5. At all times material hereto, Plaintiff was "engaged in commerce" within the

meaning of §206 of the FLSA.

6. At all times material hereto, Plaintiff was an "employee" of the Defendant

within the meaning of FLSA.

7. At all times material hereto, Defendant was the "employer" within the

meaning of FLSA.

8. Defendant was and continues to be an "employer" within the meaning of

FLSA.

9. At all times material hereto, Defendant TEXAS ROADHOUSE was and

continues to be "enterprises engaged in commerce" within the meaning of FLSA.

10. At all times material hereto, Defendant TEXAS ROADHOUSE was and

continues to be an enterprises engaged in the "production of goods for commerce" within

the meaning of FLSA.

11. Based upon information and belief, the annual gross revenue of Defendant

TEXAS ROADHOUSE is in excess of $500,000.00 per annum during the relevant time

periods.
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12. At all times material hereto, Defendant has two (2) or more employees

handling, selling, or otherwise working on goods or materials that had been moved in or

produced for commerce.

13. At all times material hereto, the Plaintiff was "engaged in commerce" and

subject to individual coverage of the FLSA.

14. At all times material hereto, the Plaintiff was engaged in the "production of

goods for commerce" and subject to individual coverage of the FLSA.

15. The additional persons who may become Plaintiffs in this action are/were

"server employees of Defendant, who held similar positions to Plaintiff and who, (1) did

not earn minimum wages for each hour worked; and/or (2) performed work off the clock.

16. At all times material hereto, the work performed by Plaintiff was directly

essential to the business performed by Defendant.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

17. From on or about July 24, 2014 until January 12, 2017, Plaintiff worked for

Defendant as a non-exempt "prep cook."

18. Defendant has violated Title 29 U.S.C. §206 from at least July 24, 2014, and

continuing through January 12, 2017 in that Plaintiff was not compensated for all hours

worked.

19. At various material times hereto (2014-2017), Plaintiff worked off the clock

and was not paid for all hours worked.

20. At various material times hereto (2014-2017), Plaintiff was not paid minimum

wage for each hour worked.
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21. From at least July 24, 2014, and continuing through January 12, 2017,

Defendant failed to compensate Plaintiff for all hours worked as required by the FLSA.

22. Defendant has failed to maintain proper time records as mandated by the

FLSA.

23. Plaintiff has retained the BERKE LAW FIRM, P.A. to represent him in the

litigation and has agreed to pay the firm a reasonable fee for its services.

COUNT I
VIOLATION OF 29 U.S.C. 4206 MINIMUM WAGES

24. Plaintiff, and others similarly situated, realleges and incorporates paragraphs 1

through 23 of the Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

25. From July 24, 2014, and continuing through January 12, 2017 Plaintiff

performed work off the clock was not compensated at least minimum wages for every

hour worked.

26. Plaintiff, and others similarly situated, was entitled to be paid minimum wages

for each hour worked during his employment with Defendant.

27. Since then, Plaintiff has demanded compensation for all hours worked, but

Defendant has refused and/or failed to compensate him for same. As a result of

Defendant's actions in this regard, Plaintiff has not been paid the minimum wages for

each hour worked during multiple weeks ofemployment with Defendant.

28. Due to intentional, willful, and unlawful acts of Defendant, Plaintiff, and

others similarly situated, suffered and continues to suffer damages and lost compensation

for minimum wages for multiple weeks ofwork contrary to 29 U.S.C. §206.

29. Plaintiff is entitled to an award of reasonable attorney's fees and costs

pursuant to 29 U.S.C. §216(b).

4



Case 2:17-cv-00148-UA-CM Document 1 Filed 03/14/17 Page 5 of 6 PagelD 5

30. At all times material hereto, Defendant failed to comply with Title 29 and

United States Department of Regulations, 29 C.F.R. §§516.2 and 516.4, with respect to

those similarly situated to the named Plaintiff by virtue of the management policy, plan

or decision that intentionally provided for payment ofminimum wages.

31. Based upon information and belief, the employees and former employees of

Defendant similarly situated to Plaintiff were not paid proper overtime for hours worked

in excess of forty (40) in one or more workweeks because Defendant failed to properly

pay Plaintiff minimum wages for every hour worked.

32. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant's deliberate underpayment of

wages, Plaintiff has been damaged in the loss ofminimum wages for one or more weeks

ofwork with Defendant.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, GANEL POUDY, on behalf ofhimself and all proposed

members of the FLSA representative action pray for relief as follows:

a. Declaring, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§2201 and 2202, that the acts

and practices complained ofherein are in violation ofthe minimum

wage provisions of the FLSA;

b. Awarding Plaintiff the loss ofminimum wages in the amount due

for time worked;

c. Awarding Plaintiff liquidated damages in an amount equal to the

loss ofminimum wages award;

d. Awarding Plaintiff reasonable attorney's fees and costs and

expenses of the litigation pursuant to 29 U.S.C. §216(b);

e. Awarding Plaintiff pre-judgment interest; and
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f. Issue an Order, as soon as is practicable, authorizing Plaintiff to

send notice ofthe instant lawsuit to all similarly situated non-

exempt employees employed by Defendant within the past three

years.

Respectfully submitted this 13th day ofMarch 2017.

BERKE LAW FIRM, P.A.

By: /s/ Bill B. Berke
Bill B. Berke, Esq.
Florida Bar No. 0558011
berkelaw@yahoo.com
4423 Del Prado Boulevard S.
Cape Coral, FL 33904
Telephone: (239) 549-6689
Attorneyfor Plaintiff

6



CON FRACT

FOR OFFICE ESE ONLY

TORT'S

Foicten cnuntr•

1 FORFEITURE/PEA ALT 1 BANKRUPTCY IILR SIN] UTES

Case 2:17-cv-00148-UA-CM Document 1-1 Filed 03/14/17 Page 1 of 1 PagelD 7

2514 RC% 12 12.i CIVIL COVER SHEET FLED
The is 44 civil cover sheet and ihe information contained herein neither replace ilOr supplentent lbe ti1inc. and service ofplcadInp IY1 other papins as required by 1aw. cNcept as

provided I)) I iical rules of went 1 Ia form, appmved hv the bile iji Conletynce cif the Untied SIXes in Sep/ember 1974. i5 required for the use of the E heck of Court for the
purpose of milt:MN; the ciI doaet,theet isH: /ASTRA -(71).vs NEFI PAGE or MS PURA].)

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS DEFENDANTS
Ganel Poudy, on behalf of himself and all others similarly situated, TEXAS ROADHOUSE OF FORT MITH, RAR_LIC4 a FAMP.Plat

Corporation,

-.)TrC.CT COUP, T
00 County of Residence or First Listed Platni a Lee county ot Residence of First Lisled Deferonial;':i. ii.GT RPRIDA

(EH IN I S/I AINTIFF (1.1SI.11.1r (IN U.S. PLAINIlrfr VAES.(VVWYF.- nc r

NOTIN LAND (1ONSIN,Y1 ION CASES, IIS'EYilVCOATiE. DF_ oN OF
111E TItArr OF LAND INVOLVED.

(C) Attorneys Ihroj V Addr,.-As. Onar 7/.8cp/in.iiii A irmbei-,0 Attorneys it/ Ksint
Bill B. Berke, Esg., BERKE LAW FIRM,. P.A., 4423 Del Prado Blvd. S.
Cape Coral, Florida 33904 (239) 549-6689

II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION ipir,,, ...\---m um. ir, (MIL i III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARrIl ES im,,, an ...1 pr I/04- /fro /sr Phirrofell
(Fru fliverrrriv Cils 0., •'i.i and One 8,, I, iklenic0U1

D 1 1: S Goxernment X Fedel:d Question PTE DE• PTF DEE
PlainufT WA Gorernment Not a Po,(1) Ciiiien,i1TIns State 1 1 3 I Incolporatcrl,r Principal Place 1 4 1 4

of Business In Thi^1 Sine

2 ll'.S. Got 7 4 Di. ci cia Citizen of Antnliel Stale 1 2 1 2 Incorporated awl Principal Place 1 5 1 5
Defendant emth, ajte cw:enship of ParTa i M.7 of Business Iii Another State

Cutest iit Subject of. a 3 1 3 Fel eisai Noun I 1, n o.

IV. NATUI.t.E OF Still' /pr.. WrInc Ben loth,

71 I Iti In.....n..m..e PERSON.S1. INJURY PERSONAL INJURY 1 625 Diode Mated Sericite 1 422 Appeal 2811-SC 150 1 375 FaLsz Clams Act
1 1211m.), 7 310 Airplane 1 365 Personal Inpar't ot Property 21 I -Sit1151 1 423 Withdla, at 77 400 Stale Reapportionment
O 130 Mullet Act 1 41.5 Anplanz l'intliwt Pindlii:i Lialillily :1 Wili Olio 2611511 157 1 410 Antrim:ill
1 140 Neitotmlne Instrument Liabtlii).. 11 367 I lealill Care! 1 430 Banks and Banking
O 150 Recovery of Overpaymeai n 320 Assault. Iihel ft: Pliarmacentical PRO PERT'''. HIGITIN 1 450 Conmicrec

& faillimeement of_Tudgment Slandoi Personal !Rim). 1 8 211 1 i r j tII 411 S. 460 Depoilailion
1 151 Med.:me Art '..1 330 Federal. Finplos et s Produo Lishiliiii. 1 s31, P.isuir 7 470 Racketeer Influenced and
1 152 Recosery of Defaulted Li:4day 1 365 .Ssbestos Per4mial 1 S40 1ra.1:01:111.. C0 our! OrpriloanoitS

Stirlen! Loans 77 340 Marine Injat:. 11'.6)duct 1 480 Consumer Credit
(Excludes Veterans) 1 345 M.Irnie l'irirlliel Liabilin: 1..ABOR SOCIAL, SECVRITy 1 -190 Calle-Sat TV

3 153 Recoserc of Overpaymelo Liability PERSONAL PROPERTY 01 710 rial 1...itior Staildarik 1 861 MA (1.395f0 1 i;50 SecirritiesiCointnodilics!
of Veteran'S Ilenellim n 350 Molor Vdtirk 1 370 Other Fiantl Net 1 862 111.:Z. Limy:023) Exclionpe

1 160 SioAltolders1 Suns 11 355 Motor Vehicle 1 371 .1 loth in Leniiiiiir 1 7201 abor Manaccmcnt 1 563151.19 1 Tymw i 41)510, i 7 890 Orlici Slnluioia Aenons
O 190 Other Contraet Product Liability 1 380 Other PerS'Oual Relotoill 71,..r.'.-i S:', I1) i Ithe XVI 71 1191 Agricultural Ads
7 195 Contrao Pi Gina Liability 1 360 ether Personal 11,,p,1). Dam;". 1 7.1r1 Railway Labor Act 1 065 RS11•105q!il 1 893 F.InVitsinniernal Matters
•1 196 Franehis‘t hum) 1 385 Proper) Ihimpe 1 751 hIntily am! Medi.c.i.il 1 895 Frei:611i of IniOrrnatiOn

1 362 Pcrzonal Inmiy Pioduci Liabililv Leaie Au Aci
Medical Malpractice 1 .790 011hri I..abor i.ilipaltim 1 896 Arbination

1 REAL PROPERTY CIVIL RIGHTS PRISONER PEllTIONS 7 791 Enaplo) ye Rellienicii! FEDERAL TAX SUITS 1 899 Adminisliatiac Noce/tire
1 210 1.and Condemnation 1 ..A.10 Other Civ 11 Ruats lInheas Corpus: in.:oinc SceianIt 10 1 1170 Tai, e, it S Plainntl Act Res ;cm: or Appeal of
1 220 For Celosure 1 441 VQ HIV 4o? Alien Detainee 1 I )1:ten:hat I Aizencl Decision
0 23'0 Rent 1.casz i's: Ficctilieni 1 442 FinpItr, 111in 1 5 111. 510110/1:3 to Vae.itz 1 071110, Onid Patty 3 9511 Coilst elianonahry of
1 240 101I1 10 Lund 1 443 Housing' Sentence 261:511 7611) Stale Statutes
10 245 Tot Product Liability Accommodattons n 530 General
n 290 All Othei Real Property :1 445 Amer u/DisOhililie•J 1 535 Death Prnalit IMNII(MA1.1.)5:

Ernployinent Other: 3 462 N.t.linali7atisti .Appileation
1 446 Arad. V. Disobiblies 1 5.10 Sian/Minis ..Ic Dill:: 1 1(.5 g Al,.

Otlan 1 5511 Co. a Rtylits ItIiiir,

1 148 Iiiiii.Liiiiiii 7 555 hison Coniliiiiiu
.1 513(1 Civil Vet:mice

C'orlilitIoni: 01

C,nfinenienr

V. ORIGIN i Place ail V yo I Am. Bor inli

X 1 Original i1 2 Removed Imo) 1 3 Remanded from .1 4 Reinstated or 1 5 Tr,mstLerred Crom 1 b Mulndtstrict
I'mcccdtng Slate Court Appellate Court Reopuned AnotlieT Districi. 1.1vition

(...p, .4.00

Cite ihe I. S Civil St:lame under vi.hich vou ale fil inc. OM mu are Pathdiefinnai Stalides Utlie•As dilrnifyi

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION
Fair Labor Standards Act, as amended 29-U.S.C3201., et seg.
iirtef description ofcause

Unpaid wages
VII. REQUESTED IN 0 I'l IHCK IT THIS IS A CLASS ACTION DEMAND CI IECK VLS only if dertmdcd In complaint.

COMPLAINT: 1. :NI /1...If RULE 23. F R Cv I' JURY DEMAND: 11 Vcs X No

VIII. RELATED CASE(S)
IF ANY 11Incir DOCKET NUMBER

DATF. St(iNATI:R11. OF ktvoRD

03/13/2017 /s/ Bill B. Berke

RECEllt r 1-1=p 95101 'NT APPLYING I FP 11,1 1.9 1 !Ail.

c;'.1I lqw 7104,



ClassAction.org
This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this 
post: Texas Roadhouse of Fort Myers Hit with Unpaid Overtime Lawsuit

https://www.classaction.org/news/texas-roadhouse-of-fort-myers-hit-with-unpaid-overtime-lawsuit

